
 
Selkirks - Pend Oreille Transit Authority 

31656 HWY 200, Box 8 Ponderay, ID 83852 (mailing address) 
31656 HWY 200, Suite 102 Ponderay, ID 83852 (physical address)  

208-263-3774 

Public Notice of Regular Board Meeting  
11:00 am, Thursday, September 18, 2025  

SPOT Office, 31656 Hwy 200, Suite 102, Ponderay, ID 
Zoom Meeting ID:  812 2523 0356 

Passcode: 048119 

Agenda  

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Public Hearing for proposed SPOT 2025-2026 budget 

3. Public comment period for items not on the agenda (including questions from the press) 
 

4. Approval of Minutes 
a. Action Item:     Approve Minutes of the August 21, 2025. 

 

5. Financial Reports  
a. Action Item:     Accept Financial Reports for August 2025  
b. Action Item:    Approve Payment of Prepaid Bills and Outstanding Bills 

 

6. Staff Reports 
a. Ridership     
b. Operations   

 

7. Committee Reports 
a. Boundary County Service Development Committee 
b. Finance Committee 
c. Safety Advisory Committee 

 

8. Action and Discussion Items:   
a. AcƟon/Discussion Item: Adopt FY 2025-2026 Budget  
b. AcƟon/Discussion Item: Approve investment account at Edward Jones 
c. Action/Discussion/Consideration Item: Approve Alpine Summit CPAs Audit Engagement Letter  

i. Authorize signers 
d. Action Item: Update Resolution 03 - Prepayment of Certain Vendors  
e. AcƟon/Discussion/ConsideraƟon Item: Social media markeƟng and webpage refinement 
f. Action/Discussion/Consideration Item: Bonner County service and routing options 
g. Action/Discussion/Consideration Items: Financial considerations:  

i.  State Insurance Fund – Workers Comp policy renewal  
h. Discussion/Consideration Item: Independent Contractor Agreement Schweitzer Mountain Route 

 
9. Comments from the Chair and Board Members  

 
10.  Adjournment 

Note: Public information on agenda items is available from the SPOT office at 31656 Highway 200 Suite 102, Ponderay, ID or call 
(208) 263-3774.  Any person needing special accommodation at the above noticed meeting should contact SPOT three days prior to 

the meeting at (208) 263-3774. 



1 
 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
SPOT 

 

 
 

SELKIRK PEND OREILLE TRANSIT 
August 21, 2025 

 
 

Gary Kunzeman CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 11:01 A.M. 
PRESENT: Clif Warren, Colleen Culwell, Donna Griffin, Gary Kunzeman, Justin Dick, Nancy Lewis, Ron Smith, Wendy 
Trumble, Zale Palmer. 
 
Not present: Lester Pinkerton 
 
Public Comment Period: No comments. 
 
MINUTES:  Approve minutes of the July 17, 2025 regular meeting as submitted. 

Motion to approve the minutes of the July 17, 2025 regular meeting as submitted. Gary Kunzeman/Justin 
Dick.  All in favor.  Approved 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS:  

Accept July 2025 financial reports and approve payment of prepaid bills and outstanding bills. 
Motion to accept July 2025 financial reports and to approve payment of prepaid bills and outstanding bills. 
Zale Palmer/ Clif Warren. All in favor. Approved 

 
STAFF REPORTS:   
Ridership:  Donna Griffin reported Boundary County ridership for July 2025 was second highest month. Drivers are 
saying there are a lot of new riders on the fixed route. Office is getting more calls for ridership in Southern area of 
Boundary County, but outside of our service area and hours of operation. Buses were in both July 4th parades. The 
Festival ridership was good on days where concerts were sold out. The route was managed better with the radios so 
less waiting/walking. There were not many rides to the dance after the rodeo. There was good ridership during the 
Boundary County Fair. Need better signage. 
 
Operations:  Donna Griffin reported they are working on route changes. Need to get the Green Route running on 
time. Need to work on decreasing the cost of demand rides. Working on advertising packets. There are a couple of 
potential new drivers even though we haven’t advertised for positions. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS:   
A. Boundary County Service Development Committee:  Nothing to report. 

 
B. Finance Committee: Zale reported driver labor costs for July were a little high. The draft of the 2025/2026 

budget was reviewed. 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
C. Safety Advisory Committee: Had an accident at Main & Division. No damage to the bus, which was an older 

grey bus. The video camera in the bus has not worked since April 2025. Driver not at fault and have a passenger 
as a witness. 

 
ACTION & DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 
A. Action Item: Social Media Marketing Proposal. The proposal from Keokee was reviewed and discussed again 

along with proposal from Like Media. The Keokee proposal covers numerous types of social media at a fixed 
cost. The Like Media proposal offers services at an hourly rate. Like Media can also help with maintaining the 
website. Will still need someone to prepare daily posts. We need to get partners involved in the posts – 
Schweitzer, Festival, etc. Need to record new radio ads. We might be able to use the Like Media fee reduction as 
in-kind donation. 
Tabled – no action taken. 

 
B. Action Item: Waiver of Conflict, Lake City Law Group, PLLC. The attorney waiver previously presented as 

presented again with no changes. The dots in the agreement are to signify sections of rules cited in the 
agreement that had portions excluded since they did not apply.  
Motion to approve signing of the waiver of conflict with Lake City Law Group, PLLC. Justin Dick/ Gary 
Kunzeman. All in favor. Approved. 

 
C. Action Item: FY 2025-2026 Budget. The City of Sandpoint approved their budget including a match payment to 

SPOT of $145,000. The City of Ponderay match amount is still to be confirmed. Other partners are okay with 
their amounts. The budget shows we are still a little short in match, but should be able to make that up during 
the year. The budget does include the Mountain Route and Schweitzer’s match.  
Motion to take the budget to public hearing to be held at 11:00 am on September 18, 2025 and to post as 
required. Justin Dick/ Zale Palmer. All in favor. Approved. 

 
D. Action Item: Bonner County service and routing options. The ITD site review went well. However, we are not 

FTA compliant with the Mountain Route. Need to consider taking back control of the operations to ensure FTA 
compliance. Staff has met with Schweitzer to discuss the issues. We need to draft the contract for the next 
season in a way to make sure we stay compliant with FTA rules. It was suggested to add an appendix to the 
contract listing the operational procedures that will cancel the contract if not followed and taking us out of 
compliance.  
Tabled – no action taken. 
 

E. Action Item: Financial considerations. Discussion of options to pursue better CD interest rates than those 
offered by Mountain West Bank. 
Motion to reach out to Edward Jones to open an account with a minimal amount in order to use them to 
obtain CD’s at better rates. Zale Palmer/ Clif Warren. All in favor. Approved. 

 
Comments from the Chair and Board Members – Clif Warren requested the board chair to have Donna and Wendy 
prepare job descriptions. 
  
Meeting adjourned 12:45 p.m.  



 01:02 PM

 09/12/25

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summarized Balance Sheet

 As of August 31, 2025

ASSETS Bonner County Boundary County Total

Current Assets

Checking/Savings 321,848.38 30,849.49 352,697.87

Accounts Receivable 0.00 0.00 0.00

Grant Funds Receivable 103,818.38 7,678.00 111,496.38

Total Other Current Assets 57,188.72 3,390.28 60,579.00

Total Current Assets 482,855.48 41,917.77 524,773.25

Total Fixed Assets 1,585,023.56 72,702.87 1,657,726.43

TOTAL ASSETS 2,067,879.04 114,620.64 2,182,499.68

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 29,861.71 1,947.01 31,808.72

Equity 2,038,017.33 112,673.63 2,150,690.96

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,067,879.04 114,620.64 2,182,499.68



 01:02 PM

 09/12/25

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summary Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

August 2025

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Income 44,340.00 66,249.65 3,889.00 3,433.62 5,037.00 437.19 53,266.00 70,120.46

Expenses:

Administration 13,524.78 14,181.95 1,073.38 1,100.97 281.81 546.49 14,879.97 15,829.41

Operations 41,760.14 45,978.79 4,993.62 3,119.01 3,350.00 0.00 50,103.76 49,097.80

Preventative Maintenance 3,229.59 7,270.37 40.00 404.49 3,100.00 0.00 6,369.59 7,674.86

Total Expenses 58,514.51 67,431.11 6,107.00 4,624.47 6,731.81 546.49 71,353.32 72,602.07

Net Ordinary Income -14,174.51 -1,181.46 -2,218.00 -1,190.85 -1,694.81 -109.30 -18,087.32 -2,481.61

Other Income/Expense -3,554.61 -17,998.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -3,554.61 -17,998.66

Net Income -17,729.12 -19,180.12 -2,218.00 -1,190.85 -1,694.81 -109.30 -21,641.93 -20,480.27

-             -             

Bonner County Boundary County TotalMountain Route



 01:02 PM

 09/12/25

 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Summary Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 October 2024-August 2025

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Income 1,041,781.24 2,007,109.10 60,426.00 60,808.72 283,641.00 280,432.61 1,385,848.24 2,348,350.43

Expenses:

Administration 172,957.32 166,750.46 11,253.85 13,653.05 6,564.91 6,032.53 190,776.08 186,436.04

Operations 446,169.80 496,250.76 43,901.69 36,587.15 147,633.76 150,000.00 637,705.25 682,837.91

Preventative Maintenance 92,550.63 81,539.65 2,691.55 5,513.34 113,297.94 108,721.75 208,540.12 195,774.74

Total Expenses 711,677.75 744,540.87 57,847.09 55,753.54 267,496.61 264,754.28 1,037,021.45 1,065,048.69

Net Ordinary Income 330,103.49 1,262,568.23 2,578.91 5,055.18 16,144.39 15,678.33 348,826.79 1,283,301.74

Other Income/Expense -335,156.34 -1,354,434.34 -366.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 -335,522.41 -1,354,434.34

Net Income -5,052.85 -91,866.11 2,212.84 5,055.18 16,144.39 15,678.33 13,304.38 -71,132.60

(0.00)            0.00             

Bonner County Boundary County Mountain Route Total



 1:12 PM
 08/30/25

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Paid Bills Detail
 As of August 30, 2025

Type Date Num Open Balance

Coleman Oil

Bill 08/17/2025 CP-0288422 1,759.12

Bill 08/24/2025 CP-0289185 1,608.54

Total Coleman Oil 3,367.66

III-A Trust

Bill 08/20/2025 1648 2,222.00

Total III-A Trust 2,222.00

KG&T Septic, Inc.

Bill 08/18/2025 55017 145.00

Total KG&T Septic, Inc. 145.00

Mike White Ford of CDA

Bill 08/12/2025 48099 1,230.34

Bill 08/28/2025 48505 183.50

Total Mike White Ford of CDA 1,413.84

Pressure Clean Services, Inc.

Bill 08/22/2025 18795 350.00

Total Pressure Clean Services, Inc. 350.00

RWC Group

Bill 08/19/2025 RA106015815:01 2,115.72

Total RWC Group 2,115.72

Specialty Auto Glass

Bill 08/18/2025 I0082680 154.18

Bill 08/18/2025 I0082955 80.00

Total Specialty Auto Glass 234.18

Ziply Fiber

Bill 08/22/2025 260.16

Total Ziply Fiber 260.16

TOTAL 10,108.56

 Page 1 of 1



 12:54 PM
 09/12/25

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

 Paid Bills Detail
 As of September 12, 2025

Type Date Num Open Balance

Bonner County Daily Bee

Bill 08/31/2025 Budget notice 77.34

Total Bonner County Daily Bee 77.34

Coleman Oil

Bill 08/31/2025 CP-0301725 1,578.61

Bill 09/07/2025 CP-0304660 1,638.57

Total Coleman Oil 3,217.18

First Bankcard

Bill 08/28/2025 1,125.95

Total First Bankcard 1,125.95

Mike White Ford of CDA

Bill 09/03/2025 48680 59.78

Bill 09/04/2025 48750 59.78

Bill 09/04/2025 48740 59.78

Total Mike White Ford of CDA 179.34

Mountain Ledgers

Bill 08/31/2025 8418 1,275.00

Total Mountain Ledgers 1,275.00

Pressure Clean Services, Inc.

Bill 09/04/2025 18824 120.00

Bill 09/05/2025 18826 120.00

Total Pressure Clean Services, Inc. 240.00

TOTAL 6,114.81

 Page 1 of 1



Type Date Num Open Balance

AT&T Mobility
Bill 08/23/2025 09012025 369.70

Total AT&T Mobility 369.70

Big Brand Tire & Service
Bill 09/08/2025 5003-7269211 472.48

Total Big Brand Tire & Service 472.48

ICRMP
Bill 09/03/2025 19141-2026-1 58,741.00

Total ICRMP 58,741.00

Northwest Auto Body Ponderay
Bill 08/19/2025 RO 209 1,500.00

Total Northwest Auto Body Ponderay 1,500.00

Perfection Tire #27, Inc.
Bill 08/16/2025 3039444 20.00

Total Perfection Tire #27, Inc. 20.00

Schweitzer Mountain Resort.
Bill 08/31/2025 8/29-9/1/25 miles 3,350.00

Total Schweitzer Mountain Resort. 3,350.00

Shaky & Co.
Bill 09/09/2025 838 233.00

Total Shaky & Co. 233.00

TOTAL 64,686.18

1:01 PM Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority

09/12/25 Unpaid Bills Detail
As of September 12, 2025

Page 1











Boundary County SPOT Bus Ridership August 2025 

DATE MON TUE WED 

Bonner 
County 
THURS 

w/ Moyie 
FRI 

 

TOTAL 
8/1/2025 0 0 0 0 19  19 
8/3/2025 0 24 6 25 17  72 

8/10/2025 0 18 10 23 13  64 
8/17/2025 0 16 16 23 22  77 
8/24/2025 0 19 13 21 17  70 

FAIR 2 0 6       14             8  30 
 

    August 
Total 2 77 51 106 96 

 
 

332 
        
        
        

 

Boundary County to Ponderay & Sandpoint                        = 100 

     Local (83+59+90)            = 232 
 

Total                                              = 332 

 

DATE 

 
 
 

Boundary 
County 

Fair Rest County Moyie 

 
 

Tues,  
Wed, Fri, 
Seniors 

Thursday 
Bonner 
County 
Seniors 

 
 
 
 

Senior Totals 

  
 

8/1/2025 

 
 

0 0 

 
 

0 

 
 

6 

 
 

15 

 
 

0 

 
 

15 

 

8/3/2025 0 0 6 6 64 6 70  
8/10/2025 0 0 14 6 39 23 62  
8/17/2025 0 0 6 4 51 23 74  
8/24/2025 0 0 14 11 42 21 63  

Fair 30    12 8 20  
         

  August 
Total   

 
30 0 40 33 223 81 

 
304  

        



SPOT Ridership 

2025  
Bonner Co. 

Fixed 
Bonner Co. 
Paratransit 

Boundary Co. 
Demand Mountain Route Total 

25-Jan 5,087 629 223 23,735 29,674 
25-Feb 4,315 575 188 22,091 27,169 
25-March 4,716 568 222 15,863 21,369 
25-April 4,035 616 310 4,039 9,000 
25-May 4,226 575 335 0 5,136 
25-June 4,153 677 288 0 5,118 
25-July 6,300 667 333 430 7,730 
25-August 5,332 639 332 2,070 8,373 

Totals to Date    32,832 4,323 1,899 66,158 113,585 
   Fall Fest = 2,070 (8/1-3), Festival @ Sandpoint = 1,479 (8/1-3), Rodeo = 8 (8/1-2), Boundary County Fair = 30 (8/5-9)  
2024  Fixed Para Boundary Co. Mountain Total 

24-Jan 6,304 474 153 20,659 27,590 
24-Feb 6,378 569 170 20,925 28,042 

24-March 5,961 580 232 15,169 21,942 

24-April 4,657 667 200 3,807 9,331 

24-May 4,454 621 237 0 5,312 

24-June 4,014 668 198 0 4,880 

24-July 5,851 587 191 338 6,967 

24-August 6,548 604 218 560 7,930 

24-Sept 4,198 606 191 1,428 6,423 

24-Oct 4,216 708 200 0 5,124 

24-Nov 3,983 559 153 5,068 9,763 

24-Dec 4,580 484 162 24,384 29,610 

2024 Totals 61,144 7,127 2,305 92,338 162,914 

      
2023  Fixed Para Boundary Co. Mountain Total 

23-Jan 4672 563 230 22489 27954 

23-Feb 4200 509 204 19502 24415 

23-March 4835 600 261 19601 25297 

23 April 4197 477 152 4612 9438 

23 May 4489 548 139 0 5176 

23 June 4199 565 190 0 4,954 

23 July 5986 489 129 628 7232 

23 August 6820 536 216 0 7572 

23 September 4231 547 149 2810 7737 

23 October 4185 511 152 0 4848 

23 November 4079 565 145 1214 6003 

23 December 5558 434 137 15,078 21207 

2023 Totals 57,451 6,344 2,104 85,934 151,833 
      
2022  Fixed Para Boundary Co. Mountain Total 

22-Jan 3986 365 136 20650 25137 

22-Feb 3795 447 187 16777 21206 

22-Mar 4399 538 277 12794 18008 

22-Apr 3639 482 189 3470 7780 

22-May 3752 467 191  4410 

22-Jun 3827 588 185  4600 

22-Jul 4417 480 202 494 5593 

22-Aug 5132 596 217  5945 



 
Selkirks - Pend Oreille Transit Authority 

31656 HWY 200, Box 8 Ponderay, ID 83852 (mailing address) 
31656 HWY 200, Suite 102 Ponderay, ID 83852 (physical address)  

208-263-3774 
 

SPOT Agenda Item Summaries 
 

Meeting Date:  September 18, 2025 

Agenda Item:  8a. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   Adopt FY 2025-2026 Budget 

Background:    Adopt the budget for FY 2025 - 2026.
 

 

Meeting Date:  September 18, 2025 

Agenda Item:  8b. 

From:   Finance Committee  

Topic:   Approve investment account  

Background: The current CD matured September 10, 2025. After considering bank rates, the SPOT Board 
authorized Nancy Lewis and Donna Griffin to open an account at Edward Jones to invest in a 
CD at a higher earning rate. Upon opening the account, Edward Jones staff presented 
alternative investment options. Edward Jones staff will meet briefly with the Finance 
Committee at their regularly scheduled meeting to provide the information. The Finance 
Committee will present the options to the SPOT Board.  

 

 

Meeting Date:  September 18, 2025 

Agenda Item:  8c. 

From:   Donna Griffin  

Topic: Approve the Alpine Summit CPAs Audit Engagement Letter. Authorize signers. 

Background:  Attached is the audit engagement letter authorizing Alpine Summit CPA’s to conduct the 
audit for the current year. Please note there is no increase in cost - not to exceed $ 15,000. 

 



 

Meeting Date:  September 18, 2025 

Agenda Item:  8d. 

From:   Colleen Culwell, Donna Griffin  

Topic:    Update Resolution 03 - Prepayment of Certain Vendors  

Background:  Update Resolution 03 authorizing the prepayment of certain vendors. Please see attached. 

 

 

Meeting Date:  September 18, 2025 

Agenda Item:  8e. 

From:   Justin Dick, Donna Griffin  

Topic:  Social Media Marketing and web page refinement 

Background: Consider, provide feedback and approve Social Media Marketing and SPOT Webpage 
additions proposal.  

 

  

Meeting Date:  September 18, 2025 

Agenda Item:  8f. 

From: Wendy Trumble  

Topic: Bonner County service and routing options 

Background:  Discuss information and options about routing configurations. 

 

 

Meeting Date:  September 18, 2025 

Agenda Item:  8g. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   Financial considerations 

Background: Discuss financial considerations including State Insurance Fund – Workers Comp. policy 
renewal.  

 

 

 



 

Meeting Date:  September 18, 2025 

Agenda Item:  8h. 

From:   Donna Griffin 

Topic:   Independent Contractor Agreement Schweitzer Mountain Route 

Background: Consider updated information. No action requested at this meeting. The Board may need to 
schedule a special meeting before October 16, 2025, the next SPOT Board meeting. 

 

 



 10:15 AM
 08/23/25
 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority
 Budget Comparison

October 2024 - July 2025

Actual Actual Budget Proposed

Oct 23-Sept 24 Oct '24 - July 25 Oct '24 - July 25 Budget 25/26

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Grant Income 844,388.65 984,765.00 1,953,852.47 2,221,706.66

Match Funds

Businesses 124,288.00 118,987.00 94,612.50 200,897.80

In Kind 0.00 14,256.24 11,375.00 18,650.00

Local Government 204,500.00 208,390.00 218,390.00 269,140.00

Public Donations / Match to balance 5,600.00 182.00 0.00 9,112.99

Advertising Revenue 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 36,000.00

CapEx Match Carryforward 0.00 0.00 16,231.64

Total Match Funds 334,388.00 347,815.24 324,377.50 550,032.43

Van Pool Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Income 1,178,776.65 1,332,580.24 2,278,229.97 2,771,739.08

Expense

Administrative Expenses

Accounting 19,756.25 24,269.50 18,545.00 25,200.00

Automobile Expense 429.96 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bank Service Charges 1,601.47 1,988.00 1,640.00 1,968.00

Computer and Internet Expenses 1,510.91 1,368.15 1,000.00 1,500.00

Conferences and Training 46.00 -3.00 0.00 0.00

Dues & Licenses 277.56 50.00 416.66 500.00

Legal 2,904.62 3,769.30 2,083.34 5,000.00

Office Supplies 2,343.98 1,419.69 3,333.34 4,000.00

Payroll Expenses

Hazard Pay 1,583.50 31.00 0.00 0.00

Health Insurance 27,048.50 22,220.00 23,000.00 30,000.00

Holiday Pay 2,743.04 2,485.20 840.00 3,600.00

Payroll 103,067.17 88,995.03 91,378.26 138,543.52

Payroll-COVID Sick Pay 0.00 0.00

Payroll Taxes 20,525.60 18,249.74 17,919.27 27,168.38

Payroll Taxes-COVID 290.91 11.88 0.00 0.00

Vacation Pay 3,145.38 1,093.96 840.00 2,800.00

Workers Comp Insurance 399.46 234.76 427.42 548.66

Payroll Expenses - Other 0.00

Total Payroll Expenses 158,803.56 133,321.57 134,404.95 202,660.56

Postage 8.95 38.50 83.34 100.00

Promotion 902.50 902.50 0.00 0.00

Rent Expense 8,560.00 8,150.00 8,000.00 10,800.00

Sales Tax Paid 88.34 73.80 0.00 0.00

Travel 188.94 548.10 1,000.00 1,200.00

Utilities 0.00 0.00 100.00 120.00

Total Administrative Expenses 197,423.04 175,896.11 170,606.63 253,048.56

 Page 1 of 3



 10:15 AM
 08/23/25
 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority
 Budget Comparison

October 2024 - July 2025

Actual Actual Budget Proposed

Oct 23-Sept 24 Oct '24 - July 25 Oct '24 - July 25 Budget 25/26

Operating Costs

Advertising 1,292.77 7,781.17 7,000.00 8,400.00

Commission-Advertising Sales 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,542.86

Co-operative Rides 0.00 4,506.32 0.00 5,000.00

Contractor 150,000.00 144,277.50 150,000.00 150,000.00

DoubleMap 8,922.88 2,226.00 12,500.00 15,000.00

Driver DOT Exams 0.00 1,400.00 0.00 2,400.00

Driver Supplies 2,089.31 2,508.27 3,333.34 4,000.00

Driver Testing 2,105.00 1,350.00 2,583.32 3,000.00

Fuel 94,473.26 71,313.50 83,688.96 95,608.95

Insurance Expense

General Liability 42,336.00 0.00 0.00 60,000.00

Total Insurance Expense 42,336.00 0.00 0.00 60,000.00

Payroll Expenses

COVID Add Services 1,624.73 522.75 0.00 0.00

Hazard Pay & Lost Hours 15,391.50 12,046.36 19,930.54 14,969.20

Health Insurance -107.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Payroll-Dispatch 16,214.62 10,225.26 16,666.66 20,000.00

Holiday Pay 2,077.56 1,643.28 2,400.00 2,760.00

Payroll-Drivers 312,440.14 264,137.19 253,343.10 339,201.98

Payroll-COVID Sick Pay 0.00 0.00 0.00

Payroll Taxes 50,582.96 42,948.71 53,935.30 74,535.10

Payroll Taxes-COVID 2,694.41 1,967.32 0.00 0.00

Unemployment Insurance 41.98 1,145.30 1,200.00 1,200.00

Vacation & PPL Pay 1,175.50 1,655.00 2,630.00 3,156.00

Workers Comp Insurance 19,999.82 12,102.32 21,128.89 23,878.29

Total Payroll Expenses 422,136.22 348,393.49 371,234.49 479,700.57

Snow Removal @ Bus Stops 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Telephone Expense 7,523.28 3,845.24 3,400.00 4,080.00

Vehicle Rental 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Operating Costs 730,878.72 587,601.49 633,740.11 828,732.38

Preventative Maintenance

Bus Shelter Maintenance 223.51 2,849.92 5,375.00 6,450.00

Cleaning 7,855.84 6,453.03 5,666.68 6,500.00

Lube/Oil/Filter 3,003.45 0.00 0.00

Payroll Expenses

Hazard Pay 1,213.30 572.18 0.00 0.00

Payroll-Mechanic 29,926.54 19,508.53 26,453.34 30,080.00

Payroll-Cleaning 1,994.05 770.80 3,150.00 4,078.80

Payroll-Cleaning-Hazard Pay 58.25 22.25 0.00 0.00

Payroll Taxes 3,407.05 2,086.48 5,805.21 6,698.54

Payroll Taxes-COVID 125.07 51.80 0.00 0.00

Workers Comp Insurance 1,013.72 595.92 1,099.65 1,109.35

Total Payroll Expenses 37,737.98 23,607.96 36,508.20 41,966.70

 Page 2 of 3



 10:15 AM
 08/23/25
 Accrual Basis

 Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority
 Budget Comparison

October 2024 - July 2025

Actual Actual Budget Proposed

Oct 23-Sept 24 Oct '24 - July 25 Oct '24 - July 25 Budget 25/26

Repairs and Maintenance 121,701.84 151,614.18 131,583.34 222,500.00

Tires 17,191.01 17,645.44 8,966.66 29,000.00

Total Preventative Maintenance 187,713.63 202,170.53 188,099.88 306,416.70

Total Expense 1,116,015.39 965,668.13 992,446.62 1,388,197.63

Net Ordinary Income 62,761.26 366,912.11 1,285,783.35 1,383,541.45

Other Income/Expense

Other Income/Expense

Interest Income 4,986.12 4,007.76 0.00

Gain on Sale of Assets 0.00 3,845.00 0.00

Special Marketing Expenses -8,148.68 -809.03 -47,270.84 -30,246.25

Communications/Repeater Expenditures -28,850.20

Microtransit/Technology CARES Act Expenses -35,221.80 -78,665.84 -55,000.00

4 new buses CARES Act Expenses -679,046.00

Communications Equip CARES Act Expenses -12,731.45 -29,404.00 -7,200.00

Office Equip CARES Act Expenses -2,638.73 -29,449.00 0.00

Capital Expenditures-including 2 mtn buses -33,660.87 -288,419.55 -1,151,646.00 -583,199.00

Total Other Income/Expense -36,823.43 -331,967.80 -1,336,435.68 -1,383,541.45

Net Other Income/Expense -36,823.43 -331,967.80 -1,336,435.68 -1,383,541.45

Net Income 25,937.83 34,944.31 -50,652.33 -0.00

 Page 3 of 3



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AUDIT ENGAGEMENT LETTER 
 
 
 
 
July 21, 2025 
 
 
 
Board of Commissioners 
Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority 
31656 Hwy 200 Box 8 
Ponderay, ID  83852 
 
Dear Board of Commissioners  
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services that we are to provide Selkirks-Pend Oreille 
Transit Authority (SPOT) for the year ended September 30, 2025.  
 
Audit Scope and Objectives 
 
We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund, including the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of 
SPOT as of and for the year ended September 30, 2025.  Accounting standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP) provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as 
management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement SPOT’s basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our 
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to SPOT’s RSI in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited procedures will 
consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We will 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSI 
is required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited 
procedures, but will not be audited: 
 

1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
2. Schedule of SPOT’s Share of Net Pension Liability 
3. Schedule of SPOT’s Contributions 
4. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual – 

All Governmental Fund Types  
 
We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies 
SPOT’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 



Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority   
Page 2 
 
 

 

procedures in accordance GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole: 
 

1. Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
2. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – by Department 

 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, 
in conformity with GAAP; and report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the 
second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they 
would influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. 
 
The objectives also include reporting on: 
 

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the 
financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer of 
opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal 
awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the 
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit 
 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS; the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996; and the provisions of the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of 
accounting records, a determination of major program(s) in accordance with Uniform Guidance, and other 
procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. As part of an audit in 
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of 
assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to 
acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of 
waste and abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform specific 
procedures to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting waste or abuse. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, 
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk 
that some material misstatements or noncompliance may not be detected by us, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In 



Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority   
Page 3 
 
 

 

addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or on 
major programs. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors, any 
fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention.  We will also 
inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that 
come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential.  We will include such matters in the reports required 
for a Single Audit. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not 
extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 
 
We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain 
assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and financial institutions.  We 
will also request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement.   
 
We have identified the following significant risks of material misstatement, based on our history with and 
knowledge of the organization: 
 

1. Management override of controls 
2. Improper revenue recognition 

 
We may, from time to time and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in 
serving your account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers but 
remain committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we 
maintain internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal 
information. In addition, we will secure confidentiality agreements with all service providers to maintain 
the confidentiality of your information and we will take reasonable precautions to determine that they have 
appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to 
others. In the event that we are unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement, you will be 
asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the third-party 
service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such third-party 
service providers. 
 
Our audit of financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities. 
 
Audit Procedures – Internal Controls 
 
We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including the system of internal 
control, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and 
obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.  The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. 
Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant 
to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to 
preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that 
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope 
than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting 



Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority   
Page 4 
 
 

 

material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. 
However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls 
and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the 
Uniform Guidance. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will 
communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are 
required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards, Government Auditing Standards, and 
the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Audit Procedures – Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of SPOT’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants.  However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide 
an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of federal awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and 
other applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of SPOT ’s major programs. For federal 
programs that are included in the Compliance Supplement, our compliance and internal control 
procedures will relate to the compliance requirements that the Compliance Supplement identifies as being 
subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on SPOT’s compliance 
with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued pursuant to 
the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for (1) 
designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, including internal controls over federal awards, and for evaluating and 
monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; (2) following 
laws and regulations; (3) ensuring that there is reasonable assurance that government programs are 
administered in compliance with compliance requirements; and (4) ensuring that management and 
financial information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing 
systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles; for the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
and all accompanying information in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations (including federal 
statutes), rules, and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements (including award agreements). 
Your responsibilities also include identifying significant contractor relationships in which the contractor 
has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. 
 
You are also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, all financial records, and related information available to us; for the accuracy and completeness 
of that information (including information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers); and for the 
evaluation of whether there are any conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a going concern for the 12 months after 
the financial statements date or shortly thereafter (for example, within an additional three months if 



Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority   
Page 5 
 
 

 

currently known). You are also responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you 
are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as 
records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and 
transactions, and other matters; (2) access to personnel, accounts, books, records, supporting 
documentation, and other information as needed to perform an audit under the Uniform Guidance; (3) 
additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit; and (4) unrestricted access to 
persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.ff  At the 
conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you about the financial 
statements; schedule of expenditures of federal awards; federal award programs; compliance with laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and related matters. 
 
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and 
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected 
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period 
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each 
opinion unit taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) 
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your 
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in 
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are 
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants. You are also responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to 
remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
that we report. Additionally, as required by the Uniform Guidance, it is management’s responsibility to 
evaluate and monitor noncompliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards; take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings; promptly follow up and take corrective action on reported audit 
findings; and prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a separate corrective action plan. 
The summary schedule of prior audit findings should be available for our review at the start of the audit.   
 
You are responsible for identifying all federal awards received and understanding and complying with the 
compliance requirements and for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
(including notes and noncash assistance received, and COVID-19-related concepts, such as lost 
revenues, if applicable) in conformity with the Uniform Guidance. You agree to include our report on the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains, and indicates that we have 
reported on, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. You also agree to [include the audited 
financial statements with any presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards that includes 
our report thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily available to intended users of the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards no later than the date the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is issued with our report thereon]. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written 
representation letter that (1) you are responsible for presentation of the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; (2) you believe the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, including its form and content, is stated fairly in accordance with the Uniform Guidance; 
(3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period 
(or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards. 
 
You are also responsible for the preparation of the other supplementary information, which we have been 
engaged to report on, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).  You 
agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and 
indicates that we have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to [include the audited 



Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority   
Page 6 
 
 

 

financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report 
thereon OR make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the supplementary 
information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report thereon]. Your 
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you are 
responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe 
the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with 
GAAP; (3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior 
period (or, if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any 
significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the 
supplementary information.  
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report 
copies of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies related 
to the objectives discussed in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility 
includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations 
resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or studies. You are also 
responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions for the report, and for the timing and format 
for providing that information. 
 
Other Services 
 
We will also provide the following non-attest services for our use during the audit of your financial 
statements: 
 

1. We will prepare a draft of your financial statements and related notes in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. 

2. We will prepare a depreciation schedule based on the estimated useful lives that you have 
provided to us for your fund assets. 

3. We will assist with GASB 68 calculations and adjustments based on information provided by 
PERSI and by you. 

4. We will assist with GASB 87 Lease and GASB 96 SBITA adjustments, as needed, based on 
information provided by you. 

5. We will prepare the schedule of federal awards and related notes in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles and the Uniform Guidance based on information 
provided by you. 
 

These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such 
services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  We will perform the 
services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are limited to the 
financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right 
to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming management 
responsibilities. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the financial statements, schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards, and related notes, and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will 
be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter our assistance with preparation of 
the financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and related notes and that you 
have reviewed and approved the financial statements, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, 
and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to 
oversee the nonaudit services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with 
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of those services; and accept 
responsibility for them. 
 



Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority   
Page 7 
 
 

 

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other  

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we 
request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. 
 
At the conclusion of the engagement, we will complete the appropriate sections of the Data Collection 
Form that summarizes our audit findings. It is management’s responsibility to electronically submit the 
reporting package (including financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, summary 
schedule of prior audit findings, auditor’s reports, and corrective action plan) along with the Data 
Collection Form to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. We will coordinate with you the electronic 
submission and certification.  The Data Collection Form and the reporting package must be submitted 
within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s reports or nine months after the end of 
the audit period. 
 
We will provide copies of our reports to SPOT; however, management is responsible for distribution of the 
reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing privileged and 
confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Alpine Summit CPAs and constitutes 
confidential information.  However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to Federal or State 
officials or their designee, a federal or state agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. 
Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or 
to carry out oversight responsibilities.  We will notify you of any such request.  If requested, access to 
such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Alpine Summit CPAs personnel.  
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the 
aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information 
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report 
release date or for any additional period requested by the State or other regulators. If we are aware that a 
federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the 
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 
 
Christina Laurie is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and 
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  We expect to begin our audit on 
approximately November 1, 2025, and to issue our reports by approximately May 31, 2026.   
 
Our fee for services will not exceed $15,000. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as 
work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be 
suspended if your account becomes 45 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your 
account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be 
deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed 
our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-
of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from 
your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the 
audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee 
estimate before we incur the additional costs. 
 
Reporting 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of SPOT’s financial statements. Our report will 
be addressed to management and those charged with governance of SPOT. Circumstances may arise in 
which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. 
Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add 



Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority   
Page 8 
 
 

 

a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if 
necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the 
reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form 
or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw 
from this engagement. 
 
The Government Auditing Standards report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance 
and other matters will state that (1) the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of 
internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance, and (2) the report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal 
control and compliance. The Uniform Guidance report on internal control over compliance will state that 
the purpose of the report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Both reports will state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to SPOT and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us know.  If you agree with the 
terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign and return it to us. 
 
Very truly yours, 

Alpine Summit CPAs 
Alpine Summit CPAs 
 
 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of SPOT: 
 
 
Management/Treasurer Signature:  _______________________________ 
 
Title:  ___________________________________ 
 
Date:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
Governance/Board Signature:  _______________________________ 
 
Title:  ___________________________________ 
 
Date:  ___________________________________ 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 003 - AMENDED 2025-9-18 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SELKIRKS PEND ORIELLE TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF 
IDAHO; AUTHORIZING PREPAYMENT OF CERTAIN VENDORS 

WHEREAS, certain vendors that provide services and/or goods the Selkirk Pend Oreille 
Transit Authority on a regular basis have a billing cycle that requires the bill to be paid prior to a 
regular council meeting; and   

 
WHEREAS, payroll obligations also need to be paid prior to the first council meeting of 

the month; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the SPOT Authority Board to avoid payment of late fees and 

to timely meet the payroll obligations. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the SPOT Authority Board, Bonner County, Idaho 

that the following pre-authorization for payment of certain bills be adopted:  
 

1.  The Accountant is authorized to pay the following vendors for the listed purposes by the due 
date on the bill and prior to submitting the bill to the SPOT Authority Board for approval: 

 5th Avenue Car Wash 
 AT&T Mobility 
 Big Brand Tire and Service 
 Bonner County Daily Bee 
 Bonner General Health 
 Brown’s Northside 
 Coleman Oil 
 Credit Cards 
 Dyck’s Oil 
 Enterprise Car Rental  
 Golden West Mobility 
 Gription Tire Pros 
 iii-A Trust 
 KG&T Septic, Inc. 
 Lake City Law 
 Les Schwab 
 Mike White Ford of Sandpoint 
 Mountain Ledgers 
 Napa Auto Parts 
 Perfection Tire 
 Pressure Clean Services 
 R & L Property Management 
 RWC Group 
 Specialty Auto Glass 
 SpeedPro Imaging 
 Spokane Testing Solutions 
 Ziply  



RESOLUTION 003 - AMENDED 2025-9-18 

 

 

 
2. The Accountant shall submit the above bills to Board for ratification at the first Board meeting 

following the payment of the bill.   

PASSED by Selkirks-Pend Oreille Transit Authority Board this 18th day of September 2025. 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________                          _____________________________  

Board President            Board Secretary  




























